
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, July 1, 2014 
 

 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/01/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, July 1, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
  

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Minutes for Approval: 
 

• May 6, 2014, Special Town Council Meeting 
• May 20, 2014 Town Council Meeting 
• June 3, 2014 Town Council Meeting 

 
c. Consideration of agreement with e-City Services LLC for media/video streaming. 

 
d. Website Memorandum (Receive and File) 

 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/01/2014 
 

e. Confirmation of “Legal Non-conforming Lot of Record” status of a parcel of land located at 
14535 Paradise Trail, Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 (Parcel Control Number 41-41-43-17-
01-342-0100). 

 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Clement Clarke and Michael Sklar to provide a presentation on the Urban County 
Qualification Process for FY 2015-2017 between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves and 
Palm Beach County, enabling the Town to continue to access funds under the 
Community Development Block Grant program (CDBG). 
 

b. Sandra Semande, Volunteer Captain for the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) 
Loxahatchee Rovers, to make a presentation concerning Citizen Observer Patrol (COP) 
Program. 
 

 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Elise Ryan, Chair for the FAAC (Financial Advisory and Audit Committee), to 
provide Financial Report Ending May 2014. 
 

 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 2nd / FINAL READING / PUBLIC HEARING 
(Livestock Waste – Property Owners).  (rev 05/15/2014) (Deferred to a date certain 
from the June 3, 2014 Town Council Meeting requesting all five (5) Council Members to 
be present.) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 
AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 
ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION 

2 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/01/2014 
 

AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE DELIVERY AND 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

a. Okeechobee Boulevard 
 

b. IGC Meeting 
 

9.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Consideration for the FY 2015-2017 Agreement between the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves and Palm Beach County for the Urban County Jurisdiction to enable residents 
continued access to funds under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 
 

b. Discussion of Gas Tax Map with particular reference to 43rd Road North.  
 

c. Phyllis Maniglia to speak on Code Enforcement matters. (Councilman Ron Jarriel) 
 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Transmittal of Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget 
 

b. Imposition of Code Enforcement Administrative Cost (Councilman Tom Goltzené) 
 

c. Request for an Investigation of a Town Vendor 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

3 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/01/2014 
 

 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for July 18, 2014. 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Attorney Invoice 

5 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

May 6, 2014 Special Meeting 
May 20, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 3, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 

16 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
  SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY MAY 6, 2014, 6:00 P.M. 
   Page 1 of 2  

 

 
 

Town Council Minutes 
05/06/2014 
 

     Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
   Special Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 6, 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

    Town of Loxahatchee Groves Town Offices, 14579 Southern Blvd., Suite 2, 
Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470 

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. OPENING OF PUBLIC MEETING – Town of Loxahatchee Groves Office 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.  Present were Mayor David Browning, Vice-
Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel, Councilmen Ryan Liang, and Jim Rockett.  Councilman Goltzene was not 
present.  Also present was Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk who opened and closed the meeting. 
 
Town Attorney Mike Cirullo opened the proceedings at 6:05 p.m. for the Attorney Client, read the 
instructions for the Special Town council Meeting, and called roll for the remainder of the attendees:  
Also present were Michael D. Cirullo, Town Attorney; Michael T. Burke, Attorney for the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves; Town Manager Mark Kutney; and Donna Meyers, Court Reporter. 

 
b. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the Agenda.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded 
the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0.   
 
 
2. DAY V. TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, PALM BEACH COUNTY CIRCUIT 

COURT CASE NO.  50 2012CA 014543XXXXMB  
 
F. S. 286.011(8) Allows the Mayor, Town Council, and the Town Manager to Meet in a Closed-Door 

Attorney/Client Session for the Purpose of Discussing Strategy Related to Litigation. 
 
 The Town Council Mayor Shall Announce: 
 
 a.) The Attorney/Client Closed-Door Session 

17 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
  SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY MAY 6, 2014, 6:00 P.M. 
   Page 2 of 2  

 

 
 

Town Council Minutes 
05/06/2014 
 

 b.) The estimated time is thirty minutes 
 c.) The names of the persons attending: 
 
   David Browning, Mayor 
   Ron Jarriel, Vice Mayor 
   Tom Goltzené, Council Member 
   Jim Rockett, Council Member 
   Ryan Liang, Council Member 
   Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney 
   Michael T. Burke, Attorney for Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
   Mark Kutney, Town Manager 
   Court Reporter  
 

d.) The Special Town Council Meeting will adjourn and the persons listed above will enter into the 
Closed-Door Attorney/Client Session. 

 
 
3. CONVENE ATTORNEY-CLIENT SESSION 
 
 
4. RE-OPENING OF PUBLIC MEETING AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF TERMINATION OF 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT SESSION 
 
   a.) Call to Order 
   b.) Town Council Mayor to Announce the Termination of the  

Attorney/Client Session 
  c.) Possible Direction from Town Council 
 
The above announcements were made.   Town Attorney Mike Cirullo closed the Attorney Client Session. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to close the Special Meeting.  Councilman Rockett 
seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 4/0. 
 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
There being no further business, the Special Town Council Meeting was adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ __________________________________  
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 

18 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 1 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 20, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  Present were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang, and Jim 
Rockett.  Also present were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, 
Town Planning Technician Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann, 
and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Town Manager Kutney requested a Change Order from North Florida Emulsions be added to the 
agenda. 

 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the agenda, as amended.  
Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
 
 
 

19 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 2 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Authorization for execution by Mayor Browning of renewal lease agreement between the 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves and the Yee Corporation, for Town Hall Offices Suite No’s 
1, 2, 4, 5, 6, and 7.  
 

Town Manager Kutney explained that in the renewal lease agreement with Yee Corporation the 
Town has added Suites No’s. (One) (1) and Seven (7) to the office space, and that there is an exit 
clause which will provide flexibility (120 day notice).  The rent will change from $1,000 to 
$1,425 per month. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the renewal lease agreement and 
authorize the Mayor to sign.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the 
motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Jeff Miller, 691 Hyde Park Road, spoke concerning paving Collecting Canal Road.  He has lived 
off that road for ten (10) years.  The road is shell rock and limestone base and the dust is bad, 
and so is the speeding.  Crews that maintain the road are doing such a great job that it allows the 
traffic to go fast.  Forty (40) miles per hour traffic is very dusty, thirty (30) miles per hour traffic 
is not bad.  Mr. Miller questioned whether there are plans to pave the Collecting Canal Road. 
 
Robert Austin, 13845 Collecting Canal Road, has lived in town for eighteen (18) years.  Dust on 
Collecting Canal Road is very bad; he had heard that paving had been taken off the agenda, and 
was wondering what happened. 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, referenced a resident who had spoken during a previous Town 
Council Meeting, on alternatives to OGEM road resurfacing.  Mr. Harris had done a brief 
research on five (5) different alternatives, and suggested to Council that this might be something 
to look into. 
 
Phyllis Maniglia, spoke on Code Enforcement, and her concern with the complaint against her.  
She hopes this can be resolved and brought back to Council at the next meeting.  Ms. Maniglia 
handed out a booklet to Council for their review, concerning her situation.  
 
Marge Herzog, 966 A Road, mentioned the Town Council meeting was not posted in the 
newspaper. 
 
Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Boulevard, expressed appreciation to Mayor Browning, his wife 
Sharon, Councilman Rockett, and John Ryan for their help with the event at the Loxahatchee 
Groves Elementary School.    He also commented on the Code Enforcement process.   
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - None 

20 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 3 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – None 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - None 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  
 
ORDINANCE NO.2014-05 / 1ST READING/PUBLIC NOTICE: (Guns, Firearms, Gun 
Ranges) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ELIMINATE REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, 
FIREARMS AND GUN RANGES TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE 
REGULATION OF THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN 
TO COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2014-05. 
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, provided background, and went through the 
changes and comments made by the Planning and Zoning Board; stating basically all references 
to gun and gun ranges will be removed from the Town Code.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo handed out Ordinance No. 2014-05 with highlighted changes, to Council.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to accept the recommendations.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion, for discussion.   
 
Council discussed the changes within the ordinance, and requested that the wordage, referencing 
State guidelines, be such as to not have to change sections in the Town’s local ordinance each 
time the State makes changes. Parking requirements were addressed.  The Town will defer to 
Florida State Statutes when in doubt. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 5/0.     

 
 
  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
Town Manager Kutney noted two items that he will be discussed during the June Town Council 
meetings. One is the lighting on State Road 80, which was discussed in a meeting with the 
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT); and the other is that the Florida Department of 

21 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 4 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

Environmental Protection (FDEP) has the Town in their sites relative to the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES).   
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion of Road Improvement Policy  
• Methodology 
• Roads 

 
Town Manager Kutney provided background, and reported he had placed additional paperwork 
on the dais for Council to review.  
 
Town Manager Kutney then explained the Change Order Request made by North Florida 
Emulsions (NFE) for additional funds to finish the road repairs.  Town Manager Kutney had 
provided notice to proceed to NFE and to Keshavarz and Associates, the Town Engineers; 
however, NFE started work on a weekend without benefit of a preconstruction meeting. The 
Change Order from NFE was for an additional eighty (80) tons of fill, and recommendation to 
proceed could not be granted without Council approval.  Town Manager Kutney felt NFE should 
have been aware of road conditions prior to commencing work. He then read for the record a 
letter from Maziar Keshavarz dated May 20, 2014. The rut fill quotes were:  Marcella Boulevard 
$1,250 – ten (10) tons of fill; Compton Road, $2,500 – twenty (20) tons of fill; and Bryan Road, 
$3,620 twenty-nine (29) tons of fill. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to accept the Change Order from NFE.  Vice 
–Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion. 
 
Council discussed the improprieties of conduct referencing the Change Order, and how to 
conduct business properly.  
 
Mayor Browning stated he was extremely disappointed to get a Change Order basically a day 
after the job commenced. 
 
Members of the audience expressed their opinions. 
 
Upon vote, motion to accept the Change Order passed 3/2, with Councilman Goltzené and 
Mayor Browning casting dissenting votes. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a break, 8:26 to 8:36 p.m. 
 
Once the meeting reconvened, Mayor Browning opened the floor for comments on road 
improvements.  
 
Councilman Rockett reiterated the Council’s position.  In order to establish a fair basis for the 
entire Town, every resident on every road would have the opportunity to have their road 
resurfaced with OGEM, and assessed at one hundred dollars ($100) per acre.  There should be a 

22 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 5 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

majority of residents in agreement to have their road resurfaced; if not, the road would remain a 
dirt road.  Councilman Rockett is basing this on current funds as he is not interested in adding 
debt or raising taxes.  He referenced Collecting Canal Road and B Road matters.  
 
Councilman Goltzené agreed with the statements presented by Councilman Rockett. The issue is 
how the Town is going to pay, there is grant money available; however, without outside money it 
would be impossible for the Town to pay for all of these expenditures.  If there is any debt to be 
incurred, the people will have to vote on it.  Councilman Goltzene referenced the Roadway, 
Equestrian Trails and Greenways Advisory Committee (RETGAC) Meeting where Board 
Members suggested the Town take jurisdiction of Okeechobee Boulevard within the Town limits 
and install two (2) roundabouts for traffic control.  This would be a good project to discuss with 
Palm Beach County.  Currently we do not have the money, and we have to stop promising 
people to do things.  He also addressed canal culvert bridges that extend off of Town roads.   
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel referenced the funds in the Town’s bank account, and read Bill Underwood’s 
addendum referencing debts and bonds.  He elaborated on the financial numbers and road 
matters.  
 
Councilman Liang noted the big question for capital improvement projects is the timeliness of 
how quickly the Town wants the project done.  If the Town does not mind waiting, money can be 
saved and the projects can be paid for as we go; otherwise, the Town needs to look at all funding 
options.  
 
Council continued to discuss budget matters, Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
management of roads, and what needs to be done to get roads improved throughout the Town.   
 
Elise Ryan, 3508 A Road, wanted to add that the Town would need a referendum in order to 
borrow money.  With regard to the finances, the revenue is flat and expenses are increasing. We 
have an overhead now and it is costly.  Mrs. Ryan feels the Town is on a slippery slope with the 
current capital improvement plan, and for Council to possibly consider a referendum.  
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road, referenced an article in the Town Crier; she will play 
devil’s advocate and recommend that the residents become proactive towards Minto, and find out 
how the Town can get compensation without placing a burden on the Town by strategizing for 
traffic alternatives. 
 
Council reviewed with Town Manager Kutney the feasibility of taking over the Town portion of 
Okeechobee Boulevard from Palm Beach County. 
 
Town Manager Kutney addressed a framework for the Budget and the need to establish a balance 
between fiscal and service needs. The Town is trying not to incur debt, and in turn to implement 
additional revenue. Over a series of meetings, Town Manger Kutney feels Council will be able to 
find a solution.   
 
Mayor Browning stated the Town needs to be careful.  He believes in Government Lite and he 
feels we are getting too heavy.  

23 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 6 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, and Chair for Roadway, Equestrian Trails, and Greenway Advisory 
Committee: 

• Roadway Canal Crossings  
• Town of Loxahatchee Groves Roadway Canal Crossing – A Study and 

Recommendation 
• Town of Loxahatchee Groves Gas Tax Map 
• Town of Loxahatchee Groves Vehicular Canal Crossing Photos 
 

Keith Harris provided his presentation on culverts and canal crossings on Town roads and 
provided a copy of his presentation.   
 
Council discussed the feasibility of repairing/replacing culverts on Town roads, and referenced 
the purpose of gas tax monies, and if those monies are being applied properly.  Since culverts are 
part of the infrastructure of the Town, it would be feasible to establish a standard for installation, 
and possibly go out for bid, not to exceed $100,000. 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Debt Issue in Charter 

 
Town Manager Kutney stated there was nothing more that needed to be said. 

 
Councilman Goltzené suggested that the June 17, and July 15, 2014, Town Council 
Meetings (second meetings of the month) be cancelled.  It was the consensus of Council to 
agree to the cancellations. 

 
 

11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Bill Louda, 1300 E Road, said “no to Minto”.  He suggested Council look at the culvert standard 
submitted by Clete Saunier, former District Administrator of the Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District (LGWCD). 

 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road, expressed her concern that the Town needs to use 
common sense in order to see if there is money available to protect the community.  

 
 
 
b. Town Attorney   
 

Nothing further at this time. 

24 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 7 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

Vice-Mayor Jarriel thanked everyone for coming, and to be safe going home. 
 

Councilman Liang thanked everyone for coming. 
 
Councilman Rockett asked if Council could direct the Town Attorney to contact Palm Beach 
County concerning the legal prospective of taking over Okeechobee Boulevard during the future 
expansion project. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated there was a legal mechanism, but that the decision would be more 
policy, maybe it is best that Town Manager Kutney talk to the County Administrator first, and if 
it is a policy issue then determine where we can go from there.  If there are any road blocks then 
Town Attorney Cirullo can talk to the County Attorney.  

 
Councilman Rockett would like Staff to pursue this inquiry, and mentioned he likes a two lane 
country road that does not get expanded, but feels that is something Minto would not like. 

 
Councilman Rockett would like a resolution to relay that the Town of Loxahatchee Groves is not 
in support of the Minto expansion.   He also requested a discussion of the Town’s Code 
Enforcement process and procedures, and any documentation to be placed on the next Town 
Council Agenda. 

 
Town Manager Kutney noted he will be presenting a PowerPoint Presentation during the 
Financial Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) Meeting concerning the nuts and bolts Code 
Enforcement, of which he can also present to Council, if they wish.   Town Manager Kutney did 
state the Town’s policy was, in order to file a complaint; the complaint must be in the form of a 
written affidavit.  The Town does not conduct proactive Code Enforcement. 

 
Councilman Rockett wanted the Code Enforcement PowerPoint on the next agenda, and for 
Town Manager Kutney to provide, to Council, anything he could prepare in the meantime. 

 
It was the Consensus of Council to have the Town Attorney prepare a resolution stating the 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves is not in support of the Minto expansion. 

 
Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for coming. 

 
Mayor Browning would like the Town to take over the responsibility of Okeechobee Boulevard 
within the Town boundaries; however, the entire road is part of Palm Beach County’s grand 
plan, and he does not think the request would be granted. 
 
 
 
 
 

25 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 

   Page 8 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
05/20/2014 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the 
meeting at 10:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These minutes were approved during the ____________________________ Town Council Meeting. 
 
 
 
  

26 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 1 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, June 3, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr.  
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
MINUTES 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  Present were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, and Jim Rockett.  Also 
present were Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Town Planning 
Technician Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann, and Town Clerk 
Janet K. Whipple.  Councilman Ryan Lang was not present at this time. 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Town Manager Kutney requested that a presentation by Frank Schiola be added to Presentations 
as Item “d.” 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda, as amended.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

 

27 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 2 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

b. Minutes for Approval:  
 

• May 6, 2014, Town Council Meeting 
 

c. Approval of Connection of New Potable Water Service with Palm Beach County, Norma 
Davis – 14685 40th Street North, Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
 

Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman 
Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0. 

 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, read a prayer referencing dual allegiance in our elected Town 
Government. Mr. Harris spoke on roads on the gas tax maps and the difference of opinions 
concerning this matter. He remarked that the Water District (LGWCD) is not his Town 
government.  Mr. Harris noted many incidences and discussions concerning roads and culverts in 
which Vice-Mayor Jarriel should have recused himself, and did not. 
 
David Braswell, 13118 Casey Road, requested that his road be paved and he will work with other 
residents along Casey Road.  As he understands, the Town needs fifty-one percent (51%) of 
residents, in agreement, to proceed.  
 
Amy Braswell, 13118 Casey Road, expressed her concern of three (3) drug rehabilitation houses 
on her road.  Mrs. Braswell had called to report the activity but has not heard back.  She wanted 
to know if these houses are legal.  
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Representative Mark S. Pafford, Florida House of Representative, District 86, to 
provide Legislative Update. 
 

Representative Mark Pafford first responded to Mrs. Braswell’s concern on drug rehabilitation 
houses. The State does not define these homes.  A bill concerning the houses went thru the 
House and died, and it is a concern; however, at this time there is no legislation.  Representative 
Pafford then reported that the proposed Palm Beach State College was not vetoed by the 
Governor; and there is a lack of funding for schools in the County and a lack of Health Care 
coverage. 
 
John Ryan, Supervisor at the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD), invited 
Representative Pafford to the District meeting for recognition of his leadership and efforts 
towards the community. 
 
 Mayor Browning appreciated Representative Pafford’s work with the District Road Bill and the 
Equestrian Trails Bill that passed before the Special Acts of the Legislature.  

28 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 3 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

  
b. Phyllis Maniglia, representing the Loxahatchee Groves Land Owners Association, 

is requesting consideration of a monetary donation from the Town, as a sponsor 
for her attendance to the 2014 Florida Neighborhoods Conference in Orlando, 
July 11th and 12th, 2014.  
 

Phyllis Maniglia, 359 West D Road, had come before Town Council to request sponsorship for 
her attendance to the Neighborhoods Conference in Orlando.  The Loxahatchee Groves Land 
Owners Association was sending her as their representative; however, through other 
sponsorships she had met her expenses.  She thanked Council for their consideration, and to 
those who had made donations as sponsor. 

 
c. Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, to present the Unified Land 

Development Code Review Committee Summary Report. 
 

Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, provided background on the Unified Land 
Development Code (ULDC) Board Final Report. 
 
Council briefly discussed the packet and Mayor Browning stated this information needed to be 
brought to Council as a separate agenda item or have a Special Workshop to review the 
information. 
 

d. Frank Schiola, to administer Certificates of Appreciation. (added to the agenda 
per an amendment)  
 

Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Boulevard, came to the Town Council meeting to present 
Certificates of Appreciation to Councilman Jim Rockett and to John and Elise Ryan for their 
help during the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School Annual Spring Carnival and Silent 
Auction.  Mr. Schiola thanked them on behalf of the school.   
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Elise Ryan, Chair for the Financial Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC), to provide 
Financial Report ending April 2014. 

 
Elise Ryan, Chair for the FAAC provided the Financial Report ending April 2014.  As there were 
items in the Capital Budget that were not yet approved, she requested Council provide to Staff 
the items that need to be rolled over into the 2015-1016 Capital Budget. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo will meet with Town Manager Kutney and Perla Underwood for 
discussion on this matter. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Financial Report ending April 
2014.  Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 4/0.    
 

29 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 4 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

Council discussed the Budget.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to have a second meeting in June to discuss 
the Budget.  
 
After further discussion, the motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
Members of the audience expressed their support of two meeting per month, and suggested that a 
Workshop could be scheduled in July. 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS  
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-05 (Opposition to Minto West Development 
Amendments):   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, OPPOSING THE AMENDMENTS TO THE PALM BEACH 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PROPOSED FOR THE MINTO WEST 
DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTY ABUTTING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES AND FORMERLY REFERRED TO AS CALLERY JUDGE GROVES; 
URGING THE PALM BEACH COUNTY COMMISSION TO DENY THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING FOR COPIES OF THIS RESOLUTION TO BE 
DISTRIBUTED TO AFFECTED ENTITIES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
Councilman Goltzené recused himself from voting, but not from discussion.  He stated there 
are people in Town who want to live in the 21st Century.  Folks need to live with reality and 
realize growth will happen.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Resolution No. 2014-05. 
 
Council discussed portions they felt were vague, and how the impact of the Minto Project would 
affect the traffic flow in the Town.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-05.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  
 
Further discussion ensued with audience participation.  
 
Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 3/0. 
 
Council discussed notifying residents; however, upon further discussion the residents were 
encouraged to contact the Palm Beach County Commissioners with their individual concerns. 
 
 

30 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 5 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

 
7.  ORDINANCES  

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 2nd / FINAL READING / PUBLIC HEARING 
(Livestock Waste – Property Owners).  (rev 05/15/2014) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE BY 
AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 
ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION 
AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE DELIVERY AND 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title for Ordinance No. 2014-04, and advised Council the 
adoption will require four (4) affirmative votes to adopt on Second (2nd) Reading.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to postpone the vote on Ordinance No. 2014-
04 until all five (5) Council Members are present.     
 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that by establishing a date certain, the Town will not have to notice 
the ordinance again. 
 
Councilman Rockett modified his motion to postpone until the July 1, 2014, Town Council 
Meeting.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 3/1 with 
Councilman Goltzené casting a dissenting vote. 
 

b. ORDINANCE NO 2014-05: 2ND / FINAL READING / PUBLIC HEARING (Guns, 
Firearms, Gun Ranges). 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TO ELIMINATE REGULATIONS RELATING TO GUNS, FIREARMS AND 
GUN RANGES TO ADDRESS STATE PREEMPTIONS OF THE REGULATION OF 

31 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 6 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

THESE SUBJECTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO COMPLY WITH 
THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2014-05 and again advised Council that 
Ordinance No. 2014-05 also requires four (4) affirmative votes to adopt on Second (2nd) 
Reading. 
 
Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 2014-05.  Councilman 
Goltzene seconded the motion.  There being no discussion by Council or the audience, and 
upon roll call vote, the motion passed 4/0.  
 

   
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 
 
Town Manager Kutney reminded Council of the meeting changes. 

 
9.  OLD BUSINESS - None 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission Office of the General Counsel, re 

Local Ordinances and the Regulations of Captive Wildlife. (Councilman Goltzené) 
 

Councilman Goltzené stressed that captive wildlife is the regulatory responsibility of the Florida 
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), and the Town should remove Town 
responsibility from the Code Book.  Captive wildlife has always been a part of Loxahatchee 
Groves, and as such, needs to be left alone by the Town. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated the matter is worth looking into, and he will work with Town 
Manager Kutney and Town Planning Consultant Fleischman, if Council wishes, to address this 
issue. 
 
It was the consensus of Council to direct the Town Attorney and Staff to review the Town 
Code in reference to captive wildlife. 
  

b. Code Enforcement PowerPoint Presentation (Town Manager Kutney – Receive and File)   
 
 
 
 
 

32 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 7 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

 a. Public 
 

Phyllis Maniglia, 359 West D Road, reported that she had attended the Finance Advisory and 
Audit Committee (FAAC) Meeting, and after watching Town Manager Kutney’s Code 
Enforcement Presentation, she advised Council that she would like to be on the next Town 
Council Agenda concerning Code Enforcement and review how the Town is closing cases. She 
also reported that Code Enforcement Officer Russ Elgin was allowed on her property to review 
the circumstances of her case, and he had stated that the Code Enforcement complaint was 
unfounded.  Ms. Maniglia has not yet received a letter to that effect. 

 
Jo Siciliano, 1530 B Road, wants to make sure she is maintaining her property correctly, what is 
her responsibility, and where can she find this information. 

 
Mayor Browning suggested Ms. Siciliano contact Palm Beach County Emergency Management.  

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel suggested Ms. Siciliano also contact the Steve Yohe, the Loxahatchee Groves 
Water Control District Administrator. 

 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, referenced reports from the Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) 
Review Committee interim recommendations.  

 
b. Town Attorney   

 
Town Attorney Cirullo had no report. 

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for staying tonight.  He felt the Town Council made a 
mistake regarding the Minto Project.  Had the Town worked with Minto, fees that were 
contributed to Palm Beach County would have been given to Loxahatchee Groves.  Councilman 
Goltzené also noted that the mean spirited actions are not acceptable and this has caused the 
Town to kick the folks in the teeth who could have helped us.  Now the Town has to look at 
Representative Pafford for assistance. Talking to people is better than fighting and the silent 
majority just lost their chance; someday the Town will grow up. 

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel thanked everyone for coming and the having a full house. 

 
Councilman Rockett thanked everyone for coming. 

 
Mayor Browning disagrees with Councilman Goltzené, as it is his opinion that Minto wants to 
change it all.  He noted most everyone was flooded during Tropical Storm Isaac.  He also 
thanked everyone for coming. 

 
 

33 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 

   Page 8 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
06/03/2014 
 

 12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the meeting 
at 8:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   _____________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These minutes were approved during the ______________________Town Council Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.c. 

Consent Agenda 
 

City Services LLC Agreement 

35 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



36 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.d. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Website Memorandum 

38 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



39 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.e. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Legal Non-conforming Lot of  
Record 

40 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



44 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 4. 

PRESENTATIONS 

No back up 

 
 

51 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Financials Ending May 2014 

 
 

52 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



55 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



56 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



57 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



58 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



59 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6. 

RESOLUTIONS 

None 

 
 

61 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-04 (Livestock Waste Property Owners) 

(2nd/Final Reading) 

 

 

 

 
 

62 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 1 of 12 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 
USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN; 
AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE BY AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL 
REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 ENTITLED “PUBLIC 
NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR 
DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING THAT THE USE OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY 
THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION AND 
PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE 
DELIVERY AND USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE; PROVIDING 
FOR REPORTING AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

adopted Ordinance 2010-003, to provide requirements for permits by landowners and transporters 

of manure and horse bedding (livestock waste) in the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-03, which 

amended and restated Ordinance 2010-03, to provide for properties eligible to receive manure and 

horse bedding materials (livestock waste), amend permit requirements and provide regulations on 

how such materials are used on eligible properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to the current permitting process and continued abuses by commercial haulers, and property 

owners, for dumping manure and horse droppings (livestock waste) on properties within the Town; 

and,  

63 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 2 of 12 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with water quality within the 

drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents with scientific and academic 

backgrounds that raised phosphorous levels are possible from continued abuse of livestock waste 

dumping by commercial haulers, and property owners, within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that increased equestrian activities in neighboring 

municipalities during certain periods of time each year causes commercial haulers of livestock 

waste originating on facilities in those areas to seek out places in close proximity to those 

communities to dump their loads and avoid expenses and perhaps industry regulations associated 

with taking such loads to facilities designed to accept such; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that when used properly and in limited quantities, 

livestock waste can provide agricultural benefits, and thus a total ban on the delivery of livestock 

waste is not in the best interest of the community; and,  

 WHEREAS, on the other hand, improper disposal and use of Livestock Waste is a public 

nuisance, causing pollution concerns, attracting flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council seeks to balance permitting the limited and beneficial use 

of livestock waste with avoiding nuisances created by abuses associated with the dumping of such 

materials within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town believes that given the limited beneficial use of livestock waste, it is 

fair and reasonable to require property owners of property on which livestock waste is to be 

deposited for use for agricultural purposes to obtain a permit from the Town so that public 

nuisances can be avoided and the Town can effectively enforce regulations and laws intended to 

prevent illegal dumping of livestock waste and prevent pollution.      

64 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 3 of 12 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.  Ordinance 2012-03 is superceded as set forth herein.   

 Section 2. The Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) is amended to 

amend Part III, entitled “Supplemental Regulations,” Article 50, entitled “Public Nuisance,” to 

create a new Section 50-035, to be entitled “Use of Livestock Waste,” to read as follows: 

PART III – SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE 50 – PUBLIC NUISANCES 

Section 50-035. – Use of Livestock Waste. 

(A) Definitions.  All terms shall have the meanings set forth in Section 10-015 of the Unified 

Land Development Code, except as defined herein.  The following definitions shall apply to 

this Section: 

1. Approved disposal site: A real property for which a Town, county or state registration or 
permit has been issued for the disposal and/or processing of livestock waste, as amended 
from time to time, and/or a plot of land that is conducting bona fide agricultural activities 
in accordance with F.S. § 193.461. 

2. Bona fide agricultural purposes:  means farming, pasture, grove, or forestry operations, 
including horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee and 
aquaculture, consistent with Section 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm) and Section 
570.02, Florida Statutes (Agriculture).                   

3. Commercial livestock waste hauler: Person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or other legal 
entit(ies) permitted by the Town to provide livestock waste removal services for a fee 
within the Town in accordance with terms and conditions established by this ordinance. 

4. Composting: The process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is 
carried out under controlled aerobic conditions, and which stabilizes the organic fraction 
into a material which can easily and safely be stored, handled, and used in an 
environmentally acceptable manner within a period of 90 days.  

5. Hauler:  when used herein, collectively Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler and 
Livestock Waste Self-Haulers. 

65 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 4 of 12 

6. Livestock: Grazing animals, such as cattle, horses, sheep, goats, other ruminants, swine, 
ostriches, emus and rheas, which are used for private use or commercial purposes, or as 
defined by F.S. § 585.01, as may be amended from time to time.  

7. Livestock facility:  Property under single ownership or control where livestock is raised 
and or boarded.  

8. Livestock waste: Wastes composed of excreta of animals and residual materials that have 
been used for bedding, sanitary, or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of 
this article, livestock waste that has been properly composted shall not be considered 
livestock waste.  

(a) Livestock waste self-hauler: Property owner or authorized representative providing 
Livestock waste removal services from their own property within the Town, or delivering 
Livestock waste to their own property within the Town from a location within the Town, 
for personal use only by the owner or tenant of the receiving property, using a vehicle 
with a capacity no greater than ten (10) cubic yards.  

9. Livestock waste storage area: An area constructed of impermeable material such as 
concrete or asphalt; with an impermeable cover; or a mechanical storage container that 
can be sealed, lifted, and transported. 

10. Load: approximately twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) cubic yards of Livestock Waste.    
11. Public Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of 

property, which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to 
the general public. 
 

(B) The deposit, dumping, and/or use of Livestock Waste, unless done in strict compliance 

with this Section is declared to be a public nuisance and is prohibited. 

(C) A property owner must obtain a permit from the Town prior to accepting any Livestock 

Waste on the property.  A property owner may have only one permit at a time.   An 

annual permit shall be valid from October 1 to September 30, and shall expire each 

September 30 regardless of the date it is issued.  Property owners are responsible for the 

timely renewal of the annual permits.     

(D) The requirements for the permit required by subsection (C) are as follows: 

1. With the exception of a Town Manager-approved permit for residential property 

hereinafter provided, the property on which the Livestock waste is to be deposited 

must be designated as agricultural by the Palm Beach County Tax Collector for 

property tax purposes; provided that when a property owner applies for the first 

66 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 5 of 12 

time to the Town for a permit, the property owner may obtain its initial permit 

notwithstanding not having the agricultural use tax designation when the property 

owner has filed an application with the Palm Beach Tax Collector for an 

agricultural use property tax designation and certifies to the Town Manager that 

the property owner is making a good faith effort to obtain the agricultural use tax 

designation as soon as possible.  This exception shall apply only for the initial 

permit.  No subsequent permits may be issued until the property obtains the 

agricultural use tax designation.  Property owners of property designated as 

residential by the Palm Beach County Tax Collector may obtain a permit from the 

Town Manager when the property owner of the residential property demonstrates 

to the Town Manager that the Livestock Waste is solely for bona fide agricultural 

purpose on-site.  The Town Manager shall advise the Town Council of all permits 

approved for residential properties.     

2. The permit will be in the name of the record owner of the property.  The property 

owner must be the applicant for the permit. 

3. The property owner shall certify at the time of application that the Livestock 

Waste originates from within the Town or is shown by the filing of an affidavit by 

the property owner that it originated from outside the State of Florida. 

4. The property owner must certify at the time of application tthat the Livestock 

Waste is being used by the property owner for bona fide agricultural purposes in 

appropriately limited quantities pursuant to Best Management Practices (BMP) or 

guidelines published by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection for 

67 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 6 of 12 

the application of Livestock Waste (published guideline).  The property owner 

shall provide the Town with a copy of the applicable BMP or published guideline.   

5. The property owner must advise the Town at the time of application tof the total 

quantity of Livestock Waste to be delivered to the property and its intended use.    

6. The property owner must identify whether he or she will be a Livestock Waste 

Self-Hauler, will use a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, or both.  In the event 

a property owner intends to use a Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, the 

property owner must identify the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, and the 

Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler must have a permit from the Town and be in 

compliance with the Town’s ordinances at all times during the effectiveness of the 

owner’s permit.  A permit issued to a property owner pursuant this Section limits 

the property owner to using only one (1) Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler.  

The property owner must advise the Town in writing of a change in the 

Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler prior to receiving any Livestock Waste from 

the new Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler.    

7. The acceptance of a permit by the property owner shall provide consent for a 

Town representative to inspect the property solely for purposes of ensuring 

compliance with the terms of the permit.   

8. There shall be no charge for a Property Owner Permit.  

9. The Town may request copies of permits and licenses for the designated 

Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler, as well as drawings or layouts of the 

property to verify that the Livestock Waste shall be deposited and used in 

compliance with this Section 50-035. 

68 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 7 of 12 

(E) The deposit of Livestock Waste is permitted only on Approved disposal sites within the 

Town.   

(F) Only Livestock Waste that originates from within the Town or is shown by the filing of 

an affidavit by the property owner that it originated from outside the State of Florida may 

be deposited on property within the Town. 

(G) Delivery of Livestock Waste by Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers shall be permitted 

only between the hours of 9:00 am through 4:00 pm, Monday through Friday, except 

holidays as listed on the Town website.  Delivery of Livestock Waste by Commercial 

Livestock Waste Haulers is prohibited at all other times.  Delivery must also be avoided 

during storm events, or when the ground is saturated.    

(H) The Property Owner may accept a maximum of ten (10) loads pursuant to the Permit, 

with a maximum of four (4) loads in a calendar month.   

(I) The Property Owner shall ensure that its Hauler does not dump Livestock Waste: 

a. within fifty (50) feet of the property line, or such other distance in this subsection 

(I), whichever is greater; 

b. within two hundred (200) feet of any well or other private potable water source, 

provided that the distance shall be three hundred (300) feet from the private 

potable water source if the private potable water source is located down slope 

from the Livestock Waste dumping site.  These distances apply whether the water 

source is on the property or beyond the property; 

c. within five hundred (500) feet from a potable community well or water source.  

This distance applies whether the surface water is on the property or beyond the 

property; 

69 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 8 of 12 

d. Within fifty (50) feet from surface waters where the site is level and has 

vegetative cover, or one hundred (100) feet if the soil surface slopes towards the 

water source or is void of vegetative cover.  These distances apply whether the 

water source is on the property or beyond the property.     

(J) The Property Owner shall spread the Livestock Waste in accordance with BMP or 

published guidelines within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of the materials.  Upon 

receiving notice from the Town of flies, odors or other adverse effects, affecting 

neighbors, the Livestock Waste shall be immediately spread by the Property Owner.  

Property Owners are required to use appropriate equipment to properly spread Livestock 

Waste.   

(K) Livestock Waste shall not be spread or otherwise applied: 

a. within fifty (50) feet of the property lines or such other distance in this subsection 

(K), whichever is greater; 

b. within two hundred (200) feet of any well or other private potable water source, 

provided that the distance shall be three hundred (300) feet from the private 

potable water source if the private potable water source is located down slope 

from the Livestock Waste dumping site.  These distances apply whether the water 

source is on the property or beyond the property; 

c. within five hundred (500) feet from a potable community well or water source.  

This distance applies whether the surface water is on the property or beyond the 

property; 

d. Within fifty (50) feet from surface waters where the site is level and has 

vegetative cover, or one hundred (100) feet if the soil surface slopes towards the 

70 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 9 of 12 

water source or is void of vegetative cover.  These distances apply whether the 

water source is on the property or beyond the property.     

(L) Crops should be planted as soon as possible after spreading, but in no case later than 

ninety (90) days after spreading.  A failure to timely plant crops shall result in a 

revocation of the permit and the property owner shall not be eligible for a new permit for 

a period of one (1) year from the date of revocation.   

(M) The use of Livestock Waste as fill on property is strictly prohibited.  

(N) The property owner shall post a sign at the entrance on the property at the location where 

deliveries are received with a contact telephone number for neighbors to be able to 

contact the property owner about concerns with the delivery and/or use of Livestock 

Waste on the property.    

(O) Delivery Records shall be provided by property owners to the Town Manager each 

month, no later than the fifth (5th) business day of the month following the month for 

which the report is filed.  The Delivery records shall identify the waste source, quantity in 

cubic yards, and the bona fide agricultural use of the Livestock waste.  Failure to provide 

monthly delivery records shall result in the revocation of the permit. The Town reserves 

the right to audit the delivery records and request records from the Commercial Livestock 

Waste Hauler that delivered the Livestock Waste to the property.  The failure to 

cooperate with such audit shall result in the revocation of a permit. 

(P) The Town Council reserves the right to amend this Ordinance at any time, and any such 

amendments will apply to both future permits and active permits unless specifically 

exempted by the Town Council.    

71 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 10 of 12 

(Q) Violations of this ordinance shall result in a revocation of a permit by the Town Manager.  

Violations of this ordinance by a permit holder’s designated Commercial Livestock 

Waste Hauler shall be a violation by the permit holder.   Should a person violate this 

ordinance on more than one (1) occasion during a calendar year, that person shall not be 

granted a permit from the Town for a period of one (1) calendar year from the date of the 

last violation.   

(R) A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council to be a public nuisance. 

(S) The Town Council specifically finds that a violation of this ordinance presents a public 

nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, and law 

enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state and local laws within the 

Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes. Upon the issuance of a 

violation notice under Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or this ordinance, any permits 

issued by the Town to the property owner shall be suspended and the property owner 

shall cease accepting Livestock Waste until such time as a hearing is conducted or the 

fines paid.    

(T) In addition to enforcement pursuant to Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, this ordinance 

shall be enforced as follows: 

(1) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.  In addition to 

penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, the fines 

for violations of this ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$350 $400 $450 $500 

 

72 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 11 of 12 

(2) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty 

(60) days, or both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover 

its costs of prosecution, including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs 

for law enforcement and Town employees. 

(3) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a 

law enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, 

Florida Statutes, or of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the 

maximum permitted by law.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and 

Town employees. 

(4) Each day a violation remains, and each delivery by a Commercial Livestock 

Waste Hauler for which there is no permit, constitutes a separate violation of this 

ordinance.   

(U) Nothing in this ordinance is to be construed to permit a Solid Waste Management Facility 

in conflict with Town state and county regulations. 

 Section 3.  Effect on Ordinance 2012-03.  The provisions herein as to regulations 

for Property Owners for delivery and use of Livestock Waste, referred to in Ordinance 2012-03 

as “manure and horse bedding,” supersede and replace regulations as to delivery and use of 

Livestock Waste on properties within the Town in Ordinance 2012-03.  

 Section 4. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

73 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{220001.DOC 3}FINAL05-29-2014 Page 12 of 12 

 Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.       

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  

 FLORIDA 
    
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
MDC 

74 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.  

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

 (No Backup) 
 

75 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. 

OLD BUSINESS 

CDBG Block Grant Agreement 

76 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Technician   
 
THROUGH: Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            June 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:      Renewed Interlocal Cooperation Agreement Between Palm Beach County and 

The Town Of Loxahatchee Groves for Fiscal Years 2015, 2016, and 2017. 
   
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
On July 11th, 2011 the Town of Loxahatchee Groves entered into an agreement with Palm Beach 
County granting the common power to perform Community Block Grant (CDBG), Emergency 
Shelter Grant (ESG) Program, and Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) activities 
within their jurisdictions. The County and the Municipality agree to cooperate to undertake or 
assist in undertaking community renewal and lower income housing assistance activities; and to 
cooperate in the implementation of the goals and objectives of the County’s Consolidated Plan, 
as approved by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).   
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
Amin Houry, Technical Services Coordinator at the Department of Economic Sustainability of 
Palm Beach County, is requesting a signed agreement by July 25th, 2014. 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 
 

• N/A 
 
IV. ATTACHMENTS 
 

• One (1) copy of 2015-2017 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement  
• One (1) copy of the July 12th, 2011 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

 
V. REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Town Management recommends a motion by Town Council to approve the ICA and authorize 
the Mayor to execute the same.  

77 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN PALM BEACH COUNTY 

AND 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on ___________________, by and 
between Palm Beach County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, hereinafter 
referred to as the "County", and Town of Loxahatchee Groves, a municipality duly 
organized and existing by virtue of the laws of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred 
to as the "Municipality". 
 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto have the common power to perform Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) 
Program and Home Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program activities within their 
jurisdictions, said common powers being pursuant to Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, 
and Chapter 163, Part III, Florida Statutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, known as the "Florida Interlocal 
Cooperation Act" authorizes local governments to make the most efficient use of their 
powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis of mutual 
advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities that will harmonize geographic, 
economic, population and other factors influencing the needs and development of local 
communities; and  
 
WHEREAS, Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended, mandates that a county must enter into interlocal cooperation agreements 
with municipalities in its jurisdiction for the purposes of implementing CDBG activities 
within said municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, such interlocal cooperation agreements are also required to implement the 
HOME Program under Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, as 
amended, and the ESG Program under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and 
Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County desires to join with the Municipality in order to carry out the 
planning and professional services necessary to implement the CDBG, ESG and HOME 
Programs during Federal Fiscal Years 2015, 2016 and 2017, and during subsequent 
Federal Fiscal Years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and the Municipality agree to cooperate to undertake or assist 
in undertaking community renewal and lower income housing assistance activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Municipality wish to cooperate in the implementation of the 
goals and objectives of the County's Consolidated Plan, as approved by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipality desires to cooperate with the County for the purpose of 
implementing the CDBG, ESG and HOME Programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing bodies of the County and the Municipality have each 
authorized this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein 
contained, it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. This Agreement covers the CDBG, ESG and HOME Programs and pertains to 

funds that the County is qualified to receive from HUD under said Programs for 
Federal Fiscal Years 2015, 2016 and 2017 which cover the three-year urban 
county qualification period beginning on October 1, 2015, and ending on 
September 30, 2018 (hereinafter the “Qualification Period”).  This Agreement shall 
remain in effect until the CDBG, ESG and HOME funds and program income 

80 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

2 
 

received (with respect to activities carried out during the Qualification Period and 
during any subsequent three-year qualification periods covered by any renewal of 
this Agreement) are expended and the funded activities are completed.  Neither 
the Municipality nor the County may terminate, or withdraw from, this Agreement 
while it remains in effect. 

 
2. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for a three-year qualification period 

at the end of the Qualification Period and at the end of each subsequent 
qualification period unless either party provides the other party a written notice in 
which it elects not to participate in a new qualification period.  If such notice be 
given, the party electing not to participate shall also send a copy of the written 
notice to the HUD field office with jurisdiction over the County. 

 
The County shall, by the date specified in HUD’s Urban County Qualification 
Notice for the next qualification period, notify the Municipality in writing of its right 
not to participate, and the County shall provide a copy of such written notice to the 
HUD field office with jurisdiction over the County by the date specified in the Urban 
County Qualification Notice. 

 
3. While this Agreement is in full force and effect, during the Qualification Period and 

during any subsequent three-year qualification periods covered by any renewal of 
this Agreement, the County and the Municipality agree to amend this Agreement to 
incorporate any changes necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation 
agreements as set forth by HUD in its Urban County Qualification Notices 
applicable to all subsequent three-year qualification periods, and to provide HUD 
such amendments as provided in the Urban County Qualification Notices.  Failure 
to comply with the aforesaid shall void the automatic renewal of this Agreement. 

 
4. The Municipality, by executing this Agreement, understands that: 
 

(a) It may not apply for any grants from appropriations under the State of Florida 
CDBG Program for fiscal years during the period in which it participates in the 
County’s CDBG Program. 

(b) It may receive a formula allocation under the HOME Program only through 
the County.  Even if the County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, 
the Municipality understands that it may not receive HOME Program funds 
from a HOME consortium with other local governments.  This, however, does 
not preclude the County or the Municipality from applying to the State of 
Florida for HOME Program funds if the State of Florida so allows. 

(c) It may receive a formula allocation under the ESG Program only through the 
County.  This, however, does not preclude the County or the Municipality from 
applying to the State of Florida for ESG Program funds if the State of Florida 
so allows. 

 
5. This Agreement is contingent upon the County's qualification as an "urban county" 

under the CDBG Program as determined by HUD, as well as HUD’s award of 
funds under the CDBG, ESG and HOME Programs. 

 
6. The County and the Municipality agree to cooperate to undertake, or assist in 

undertaking, community renewal and lower income housing assistance activities.  
The County and the Municipality also agree to cooperate to enable the County to 
expend CDBG, ESG and HOME Program funds on eligible activities within the 
Municipality’s jurisdiction during the Qualification Period and during any 
subsequent qualification periods covered by the renewal of this Agreement. 

 
7. The Municipality shall assist and cooperate with the County in the preparation of 

the HUD required Consolidated Plan for the use of CDBG, ESG, and HOME 
Program funds.  The County shall prepare the Consolidated Plan application and 
other necessary documents, and shall take full responsibility and assume all 
obligations as the applicant.  The County and the Municipality agree to comply with 
said Consolidated Plan and implement activities as outlined in the Action Plan 
approved by HUD for the use of CDBG, ESG, and HOME Program funds.  The 

81 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

3 
 

County and the Municipality agree that the County is hereby permitted to 
undertake or assist in undertaking essential community development and housing 
assistance activities within the Municipality’s jurisdiction. 

 
8. The County, through its Department of Economic Sustainability, shall assist the 

Municipality in undertaking all professional and administrative services necessary 
for the purposes of implementing activities of the CDBG, ESG and HOME 
Programs, including preparation of all applications and other necessary 
documents, planning and other administrative activities, as required. 

 
9. Pursuant to 24 CFR 570.50l(b), the Municipality is subject to the same 

requirements applicable to subrecipients, including the requirements of a written 
agreement as described in 24 CFR 570.503. 

 
10. The Municipality may not sell, trade, or otherwise transfer all or any portion of 

CDBG Program funds to another metropolitan city, urban county, unit of general 
local government, or Indian tribe, or insular area that directly or indirectly receives 
CDBG Program funds in exchange for any other funds, credits or non-Federal 
considerations, but must use such CDBG Program funds for activities under Title I 
of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. 

 
11. The Municipality and the County shall take all actions necessary to assure 

compliance with the County's certification required by Section 104(b) of Title I of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, regarding 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act, and affirmatively 
furthering fair housing.  The Municipality and the County shall comply with Section 
109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, which 
incorporates Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and other applicable laws.  
The County shall not fund any activities in, or in support of, the Municipality should 
the Municipality not affirmatively further fair housing within its jurisdiction or should 
the Municipality impede the County's actions to comply with the County’s fair 
housing certification. 

 
12. The Municipality agrees that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, religion, 

disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, familial status, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or expression, or genetic information, be excluded from 
the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any activity carried out by 
the performance of this Agreement.  Upon receipt of evidence of such 
discrimination, the County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
13. The Municipality has adopted, and is enforcing, a policy prohibiting the use of 

excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any 
individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and the Municipality 
has adopted, and is enforcing, a policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws 
against physically barring entrance to, or exit from, a facility or location which is the 
subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations within jurisdictions. 

 
14. Palm Beach County has established the Office of Inspector General in Palm Beach 

County Code, Section 2-421 - 2-440, as may be amended.  The Inspector 
General’s authority includes, but is not limited to, the power to review past, present 
and proposed County contracts, transactions, accounts and records, to require the 
production of records, and to audit, investigate, monitor, and inspect the activities 
of the Municipality, its officers, agents, employees, and lobbyists in order to ensure 
compliance with contract requirements and detect corruption and fraud.  Failure to 
cooperate with the Inspector General or interfering with or impeding any 
investigation shall be in violation of Palm Beach County Code, Section 2-421 to 2-
440, and punished pursuant to Section 125.69, Florida Statutes, in the same 
manner as a second degree misdemeanor. 

82 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

4 
 

 
15. No provision of this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed to, create any 

third party beneficiary or to provide any rights to any person or entity not a party to 
this Agreement, including but not limited to any citizen or employees of the County 
and/or the Municipality. 

 
16. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to authorize the delegation of the 

constitutional or statutory duties of the state, county or municipal officers. 
 
17. A copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the Clerk and Comptroller in and for 

Palm Beach County. 
 
18. Any prior agreements or contracts regarding the duties and obligations of the 

parties enumerated herein are hereby declared to be null and void. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized officials. 
 
(MUNICIPAL SEAL BELOW)  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a 

municipality duly organized and existing by 
virtue of the laws of the State of Florida 

 
 
      By: _____________________________ 
ATTEST:           David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
By: ________________________ By: _____________________________ 
      Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk        Mark Kutney, Town Manager (if applicable) 
 
 
(COUNTY SEAL BELOW)   PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, a  
      Political Subdivision of the State of Florida 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
ATTEST: SHARON R. BOCK,  By: _____________________________ 
Clerk & Comptroller          Priscilla A. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
By: ________________________ Document No.: ____________________ 
      Deputy Clerk         
 
Approved as to Form and   Approved as to Terms and Conditions 
Legal Sufficiency    Department of Economic Sustainability 
 
 
By: ________________________ By: _____________________________ 
      Tammy K. Fields,         Sherry Howard 
      Chief Assistant County Attorney       Deputy Director 
 
 

83 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

 

 
 

LEGAL CERTIFICATION BY PALM BEACH COUNTY 
 
 
As Legal Counsel for Palm Beach County, Florida, I hereby state that the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement entered into on ___________________ by and between Palm 
Beach County and Town of Loxahatchee Groves are fully authorized under State and local 
law, and that the Agreement provides full legal authority for Palm Beach County to undertake, 
or assist in undertaking, community renewal and lower income housing assistance activities. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Tammy K. Fields, Chief Assistant County Attorney 
Palm Beach County, Florida 

84 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.b. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Discussion of 43rd Road North 

85 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



86 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



88 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



89 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



90 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



91 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



92 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



93 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



94 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



95 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



96 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



98 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



99 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



100 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



101 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



102 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



103 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.c. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Phyllis Maniglia – no back up 

104 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

FY 2014/2015 Budget 

105 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



107 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



108 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



109 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



110 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



111 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



112 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



113 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



114 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



115 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



116 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



117 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



118 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



119 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



120 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



121 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



122 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



123 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



124 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



125 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



126 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



127 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



128 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



129 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



130 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



131 of 152    A
genda P

acket 07/01/2014 
                  



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Code Enforcement Administrative Cost 

132 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



133 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



134 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



135 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



136 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



137 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



138 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



139 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



140 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



141 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



142 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



143 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



144 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



145 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



146 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



147 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



148 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



149 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



150 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.c. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Investigation of Town Vendor 

151 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
TO:                  Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:           Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:            June 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:    Request for an Investigation of a Town Vendor 
 
      
 
As you are aware, Town Management has received several complaints from Keith Harris 
requesting that Frank Schiola be terminated from his position with the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves. Mr. Harris has also filed a complaint with the Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) 
related to incident regarding the conversation that occurred on the property of Mr. Harris 
between both gentlemen regarding code enforcement and other issues.  
 
The Town Attorney and I have reviewed the matter and will be prepared to discuss the various 
options that Town Council may exercise regarding this issue. Should you have any questions 
prior to the July 1st meeting, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
 
 

152 of 152    Agenda Packet 07/01/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	 2.a. Attorney Invoice
	.b. Minutes 05/06, 05/20/ 06/03
	2.d. Website Memo
	2.e. Legal Non-Conforming Lot
	4. Presentations - None
	5. Financials Ending May 2014
	6. Resolutions - None
	7. Ordinance No. 2014-04
	8. Administrative Up Date No Back Up
	9.a. CDGB Block Grant
	9.b. 43rd Road North
	9.c. Phyllis Maniglia No Back Up
	10.a FY 2014/2015 Budget
	10.b. Code Enforcement Administrartive Cost
	10.c. Investigation of Town Vendor



